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Case Nos.: OBC19-0604; OBC19-0798

STATE BAR OF NEVADA

SOUTHERN NEVADA DISCIPLINARY BOARD

STATE BAR OF NEVADA, 

Complainant,
vs.

BRIAN C. PADGETT, ESQ., 
NV Bar No. 7474 

Respondent. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

STATE BAR OF NEVADA’S  
MEMORANDUM OF COSTS

Description Amount

Court Reporter Fee & Transcript Fee 
Hearing Held on June 8, 2020 

$643.40

Nation Wide Legal Services $60.00

Certified Mail Costs (2 x $6.78) $13.56

TOTAL $716.96

1. I am Assistant Bar Counsel with the State Bar of Nevada. I have personal

knowledge of the above-referenced costs and disbursements expended.

2. The costs set forth above are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and

belief and were necessary and reasonably incurred and paid in connection with this matter.

True and correct copies of invoices supporting these costs are attached to this Memorandum 

of Costs. 

3. As stated in the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Recommendation,

Respondent shall be ordered to pay the fees and costs of these proceedings within thirty (30) 
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days of receipt of the State Bar of Nevada’s Memorandum of Costs in this matter pursuant to 

Supreme Court Rule 120(1).

Dated this ____ day of August, 2020.

       STATE BAR OF NEVADA 
       Daniel M. Hooge, Bar Counsel 
 
 
      By:_________________________________ 

 Gerard Gosioco, Assistant Bar Counsel 
 3100 W. Charleston Boulevard, Ste. 100

   Las Vegas, Nevada  89102 
   Attorney for State Bar of Nevada 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL 
 

The undersigned hereby certifies a true and correct copy of the foregoing STATE 

BAR OF NEVADA’S MEMORANDUM OF COSTS was deposited in the United States

Mail at Las Vegas, Nevada, postage fully pre-paid thereon for certified mail addressed to:

Brian Padgett, Esq.
611 S. 6th Street

 Las Vegas, NV 89101 
 CERTIFIED MAIL RECEIPT NO. 7019 2970 0001 1910 4683 

 
 
   
DATED this ____  day of August, 2020. 

By:_____________________________ 
Sonia Del Rio, an employee of

     the State Bar of Nevada
 

 
 
 
  
 

   25
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
 

The undersigned hereby certifies that a true and correct copy of the foregoing RECORD 

ON APPEAL was placed in a sealed envelope and sent by U.S. regular mail and certified mail in 

Las Vegas, Nevada, postage fully prepaid thereon for first class regular mail and certified mail 

addressed to: 

 Brian C. Padgett, Esq. 
 611 S. 6th Street 
 Las Vegas, NV 89101 
 CERTIFIED MAIL RECEIPT NO. 7019 2280 0001 9440 7147 

DATED this 9th day of October, 2020. 

        
  ______________________________ 

Sonia Del Rio, an Employee 
of the State Bar of Nevada 
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       SOUTHERN NEVADA DISCIPLINARY BOARD

 

  STATE BAR OF NEVADA,        )
                   )
         Complainant,     )
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  vs.                 )
                   )
  BRIAN C. PADGETT, ESQ.,       )
    Nevada Bar No. 7474,      )
         Respondent.      )
  ___________________________________)
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF ZOOM HEARING PROCEEDINGS
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1          E  X  H  I  B  I  T  S
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6
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12
  8        06/20/18 Henriod E-mail        9
13
  9        06/22/18 Familian E-mail Thread    9
14
  10       06/29/18 Sugden E-mail Thread     9
15
  11       10/15/18 Decision and Order      9
16
  12       10/16/18 Notice of Filing of      9

17         Attorney's Lien Pursuant to NRS 18.015

18  13       10/25/18 Familian E-mail        9

19  14       10/22/18 Photo of Check Deposit    9

20  15       Declaration of Abraham G. Smith    9

21  16       DKB Accounting of A-12-668136-C    9

22  17       Nevada Revised Statute 18.015     9

23  18       07/11/13 NV Supreme Court Opinion   9

24  19       Familian Invoices Paid and Balance   9
         Owed

25
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1        E  X  H  I  B  I  T  S (cont.)
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3  Complainant's

4  20       11/07/16 Plaintiff's Motion for    9
         Attorney's Fees
5
  21       07/19/19 District Court Memo      9
6
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8  23       03/12/18 Notice of Appearance     9
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  24       07/05/18 Notice of Entry of Order   9
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11         Denying Ian Ritchie's Countermotion
         to Void the Settlement Agreement

12
  25       76584: Case View Paperwork       9
13
  26       Copies of Padgett Text Messages    9

14
  27       Case A-17-761033-C Court Minutes    9

15
  28       03/19/19 Notice of Withdrawal as    9

16         Attorney of Record for Defendant
         Ian Ritchie Pursuant to Nevada

17         Supreme Court Rule 46

18  29       03/25/19 Motion for Permission     9
         to Withdraw as Counsel

19
  30       04/01/19 Motion for Permission     9

20         to Withdraw as Counsel

21  31       Order Regarding Motions        9

22  32       03/20/19 Affidavit Claiming      9
         Exemption from Execution
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1          P R O C E E D I N G S

2        LAS VEGAS, NEVADA; JUNE 8, 2020;

3             9:09 A.M.

4              - - -

5       CHAIR OSWALT:  Okay.  This is the time set for

6  the Formal Hearing for Case Numbers OBC19-0604 and

7  OBC19-0798, State Bar of Nevada versus Brian Padgett.

8  And it's my understanding Mr. Padgett is not present

9  today; is that correct?

10       MR. GOSIOCO:  That's correct.

11       CHAIR OSWALT:  Okay.  So I will turn it over

12  to the State Bar if you would like to begin.

13       MR. GOSIOCO:  Absolutely.  Thank you so much.

14  Good morning, everybody.  My name is Gerard Gosioco.

15  I'm Assistant Bar Counsel here with the State Bar of

16  Nevada, and I'm the one handling the case for Brian

17  Padgett OBC19-0640 as well as OBC19-0798.  Now, before

18  we begin, I would like to, if Panel Chair would allow me

19  to, go through a brief procedural history of this case

20  just so we understand how we got to the Default Hearing

21  today.

22       CHAIR OSWALT:  Absolutely.

23       MR. GOSIOCO:  Thank you so much.

24       So, like I said, this case -- these cases have

25  been -- we have entered an entry of default in this
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1  case.  And by way of procedural history, the Complaint

2  was filed on December 23rd, 2013.  The State Bar filed a

3  First Amended Complaint approximately two weeks -- or

4  two or three weeks later on January 7th, 2020.  On

5  January 14th, 2020, I personally called Mr. Padgett and

6  left him a voice mail.

7       We were supposed to speak on the phone.  Two

8  days later on January 16th, 2020, I received an e-mail

9  from Mr. Padgett asking for an extension.  We spoke the

10  following day on January 17th, 2020, and he asked me if

11  I would be willing to stipulate to a deadline of January

12  31st, 2020.  I did stipulate to that deadline, allowed

13  Mr. Padgett to file an answer by that date; however,

14  nothing was filed by January 31st.

15       I did speak to Mr. Padgett on January 27th,

16  and there was another State Bar employee present.  I did

17  inform Mr. Padgett that, because the deadline's

18  approaching, if he doesn't file by that, by the 31st,

19  I'll be filing a notice, which would make his deadline

20  approximately February 24th, 2020.

21       I also explained to Mr. Padgett the

22  ramifications of what happens when I file a notice and

23  if he doesn't file an answer by that point, and he did

24  state that he understood.  Nothing was filed, so a

25  notice was filed on January 31st, 2020.  The Order
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1  Appointing Hearing Chair was filed March 4th, 2020.  The

2  Scheduling Order was filed March 19th, 2020, and the

3  entry of default was filed March 24th, 2020.

4       Our initial disclosures were mailed February

5  24th -- or March 24th, 2020.  Order Appointing a Formal

6  Hearing Panel filed April 3rd, 2020.  The notice of

7  amended formal hearing date was filed April 9th, 2020,

8  and we did make personal service attempts on Mr. Padgett

9  on April 15th, April 24th, April 26th, April 29th of

10  2020.

11       The final disclosures from the State Bar was

12  filed May 12th, 2020, and the notice of formal hearing

13  was filed May 22nd, 2020.  Now, because we did file an

14  entry of default in this case, the State Bar would

15  respectfully move to admit Exhibits 1 and 2.

16       CHAIR OSWALT:  That's fine, yes.

17         (Exhibits 1 and 2 were admitted into

18         evidence.)

19       MR. GOSIOCO:  Thank you.  Additionally, the

20  State Bar would also like to admit Exhibits 1 through

21  33, which were listed in the final disclosures.  That

22  was Exhibit 1, pages 67 through 70, and the State Bar

23  would move to admit those as Exhibits 3 through 35.

24       CHAIR OSWALT:  So I'm looking at what I have

25  from the disclosures.  I'm only showing 31 exhibits,
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1  although, I believe 1 and 2 were the Complaint.

2       MR. GOSIOCO:  One second.  Let's see.  1 and 2

3  are the Complaints.  I actually have 33 dated in our

4  final disclosures.

5       CHAIR OSWALT:  Okay.  I think that I just have

6  the Complaints staged separately, and so mine are off by

7  one, because I have a total of 31 plus the Complaints,

8  which makes 33.

9       MR. GOSIOCO:  Okay.  I do have, at least in

10  our final, 33, and the first one is the hearing packet

11  today that we just admitted, and the second one is the

12  Affidavit of Prior Discipline, so total right now is 33

13  with just the disclosures.

14       CHAIR OSWALT:  Okay.  Then, yes, that's fine.

15         (Exhibits 3 through 35 were admitted into

16         evidence.)

17       MR. GOSIOCO:  Thank you.  And, lastly, I would

18  like to admit Exhibit 36, which is the Affidavit of Due

19  Diligence, when we tried to personally serve Mr. Padgett

20  two months ago.

21       CHAIR OSWALT:  That will be admitted as well.

22         (Exhibit 36 was admitted into evidence.)

23       MR. GOSIOCO:  Perfect.  Thank you so much.

24  Now, at this point, I do want to briefly go over the

25  allegations, and so what I will do here is I will share
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1  my screen going off of Exhibit 1 that we just admitted

2  and reading through the Amended Complaint.  One second,

3  let me get me that pulled up.  Okay.

4       Okay.  Can everyone see my screen?

5         (No audible response.)

6       Okay.  Perfect.  So as I stated, this First

7  Amended Complaint was filed on January 7th, 2020.

8  Mr. Padgett did not file an answer or a response to

9  this.  However, I will -- like I said, I'll just briefly

10  go through the allegations starting on paragraph 2.

11  Starting on paragraph 2, we are discussing Case Number

12  OBC19-0640.

13       So on or about July 25th, 2012, Bruce Familian

14  retained Respondent to represent DKB, LLC, in an inverse

15  condemnation case against Clark County.  On September

16  11th, 2012, Respondent filed a Complaint in the inverse

17  condemnation initiating Case Number A-12-668136-C in the

18  Eighth Judicial District Court.

19       The inverse condemnation case went to trial,

20  and DKB was awarded $116,508 by the jury.  Following

21  trial, several post judgment motions were filed

22  regarding attorney's fees, costs of prejudgment interest

23  on the award.  An Order granting the prejudgment

24  interest was filed on November 3rd, 2017, but the Court

25  requested additional briefing regarding fees and costs.
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1       Familian then retained Attorneys Dan

2  Polsenberg and Joel Henriod of Lewis and Roca to file an

3  appeal of the inverse condemnation case as Mr. Familian

4  was not satisfied with the amount awarded by the jury.

5  Lewis and Roca filed a Notice of Appearance in the case

6  on June 12th, 2017.  On or about November 8th, 2017,

7  Clark County deposited $151,599.83 with the District

8  Court representing the jury verdict plus interest.

9       On June 8th, 2018, Respondent filed a Motion

10  on Order Shortening Time to direct disbursement of funds

11  on the deposit.  Four days later, on June 12th, 2018, an

12  order granting the motion for disbursement was filed.

13  Lewis and Roca who was now Mr. Familian's counsel was

14  not served with a motion for disbursement.

15       On or about June 20, 2018, Henriod discovered

16  the motion for disbursement and the order granting the

17  same had been filed.  Mr. Henriod then contacted

18  Mr. Padgett's office and expressed concern that they had

19  withdrawn the funds without notifying the client,

20  Mr. Familian, or Lewis and Roca.

21       He stated that he believed withdrawing the

22  funds might jeopardize Mr. Familian's case and notified

23  Mr. Padgett that Mr. Familian did not authorize the

24  withdrawal.  On June 22, 2018, Familian e-mailed

25  Respondent asking why the motion for disbursement was
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1  filed without his knowledge and why it had been done on

2  shortened time.

3       The e-mail requested the status of funds and

4  an accounting explaining what happened to any funds

5  received by Respondent.  Respondent replied that he did

6  have the check in hand, but that, in his opinion,

7  retrieving the funds would not jeopardize Mr. Familian's

8  rights on appeal.

9       Respondent said that he would send

10  Mr. Familian a copy of the outstanding bill, which he

11  can pay out of pocket or from the release of funds.

12  Mr. Familian then instructed Mr. Padgett to stop the

13  process of withdrawing the funds and requested the

14  current bill stating that he had not received one in

15  over a year.

16       On June 29, 2018, Respondent's office e-mailed

17  Mr. Familian a copy of the invoice dated June 26th,

18  2018, for $69,945.73 for services that were rendered

19  from November 2016 through May 2017 indicating that

20  Mr. Familian had not been billed for any post trial

21  work.

22       On October 16th, 2018, the Court filed a

23  decision and awarded DKB over $400,000 in attorney's

24  fees and costs.  That same day Respondent filed a notice

25  of filing of attorney's lien.  The attorney's lien did
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1  not include an amount.  Mr. Padgett never filed a motion

2  to enforce the attorney's lien as required by

3  NRS 18.015.

4       On October 25, 2018, Mr. Familian e-mailed

5  Mr. Padgett and stated that he had no objection to --

6  Mr. Padgett took approximately $70,000 that he was owed

7  from the attorney fee award proceeds.  But he

8  specifically stated that the funds on deposit with the

9  Court for the judgment and interest should not be

10  touched during the appeal.

11       However, at this point, Mr. Padgett had

12  already received $151,599.83 of the judgment funds from

13  the Court on October 22, 2018.  As appeared by

14  Mr. Henriod, Clark County made the argument that DKB had

15  forfeited its right to interest on the judgment from the

16  date the Court granted the motion for disbursal, though,

17  the Court ultimately rejected that argument.  Respondent

18  never provided Mr. Familian with a billing invoice after

19  June 29, 2018 -- the June 29, 2018, bill for 69,945.73.

20       Lastly, on June 19th, 2019, Respondent

21  attempted to obtain an additional $13,845.45 from funds

22  that Clark County had deposited with the District Court

23  by submitting a proposed order directly to the Court

24  without copying any parties or filing a motion.  The

25  Court returned the proposed order to the Respondent and
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1  provided courtesy copies to Mr. Polsenberg, and then

2  that's OBC19-0604.

3       And briefly I want to go over OBC19-0798.  In

4  that matter, Ian Ritchie was hired as the head of

5  security for CWNevada, a marijuana dispensary, of which

6  Mr. Padgett is a CEO.  He has been the CEO from

7  approximately 2017 to March 26th, 2019.  Prior to

8  Mr. Ritchie's employment at CWN, he was employed as the

9  Director of Sales for Pro-Tect Security.

10       While employed with Pro-Tect, Mr. Ritchie

11  signed a non-compete agreement.  Despite the

12  non-compete, Mr. Ritchie left Pro-Tect and founded Round

13  Table Security.  On or about May 2015, Pro-Tect sued

14  Mr. Ritchie for violating the non-compete.  Ultimately,

15  the non-compete lawsuit was settled with Ritchie

16  agreeing to be jointly and severally liable for payment

17  to Pro-Tect along with RTS.

18       Though Mr. Padgett was not the counsel of

19  record in the non-compete lawsuit, Mr. Padgett did

20  advise Mr. Ritchie that he should be jointly -- he

21  should agree to be jointly and severally liable on the

22  judgment, and that Mr. Padgett himself would be paying

23  the judgment.  Neither Mr. Padgett, Mr. Ritchie, or RTS

24  satisfied the settlement.

25       In February of 2017, Pro-Tect sued Mr. Ritchie
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1  for breach of contact -- contract, I apologize.  On

2  March 12, 2018, Respondent entered his appearance on

3  behalf of Mr. Ritchie in a breach case.  On June 28, 28

4  -- 29, 2018, the Court entered summary judgment in favor

5  of Pro-Tect and against Mr. Ritchie for $129,999.92.

6       On July 27, 2018, Respondent filed a notice of

7  appeal in the District Court.  On December 4th, 2018,

8  Nevada Supreme Court mandated a settlement conference

9  was held in the breach appeal.  Mr. Padgett continued to

10  communicate with Mr. Ritchie that Respondent would give

11  Mr. Ritchie -- he would give Mr. Ritchie the money to

12  pay off Pro-Tect.

13       Ultimately, Mr. Padgett withdrew as counsel

14  for the breach -- of record from the breach appeal.

15  Mr. Ritchie was not able to secure new counsel, and the

16  appeal was dismissed.  When we asked Mr. Padgett about

17  this incident, he just simply responded he's not

18  permitted to advance funds to a client nor would I have

19  agreed to do so in Mr. Ritchie's case.

20       Now, those are the allegations, and at this

21  point, I would like to go through the counts briefly in

22  the allegations.  So as to Count One, which is -- we're

23  alleging -- a violation of RPC 1.2 Scope of

24  Representation & Allocation of Authority Between Client

25  & Lawyer.
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1       That Rule, in relevant part, states that "a

2  lawyer shall abide by a client's decision concerning the

3  objectives of representation as required by Rule 1.4 and

4  shall consult with the client as to the means by which

5  they are to be pursued."

6       Count Two, we're alleging that Mr. Padgett

7  violated Rule -- RPC 1.4: Communications.  1.4 states,

8  in relevant part, that "A lawyer shall:  (1) promptly

9  inform the client of any decision or circumstance with

10  respect to which the client's informed consent is

11  required by these rules;

12       "(2) reasonably consult with a client about

13  the means by which the client's objectives are to be

14  accomplished; (3) keep the client reasonably informed

15  about the status of the matter and act with reasonable

16  diligence and promptness in representing the client";

17  and (b) "a lawyer shall explain the matter to the extent

18  reasonably necessary to permit the client to make

19  informed decisions regarding the representation."

20       As to Count Four, we are alleging that

21  Mr. Padgett violated RPC 1.8: Conflict of Interest:

22  Current Clients: Specific Rules.  Now that Rule, in

23  relevant part, states that "A lawyer shall not provide

24  financial assistance to a client in connection with

25  pending or contemplated litigation."
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1       As to Count Four, we are alleging that

2  Mr. Padgett violated RPC 1.15:  Safekeeping Property.

3  That Rule, in relevant part, states that "When in the

4  course of representation, a lawyer is in possession of

5  funds or other property in which two or more persons

6  claim interests, the property shall be kept separate by

7  the lawyer until the dispute is resolved."

8       Count 5, we are alleging that Mr. Padgett

9  violated RPC 3.3: Candor Toward the Tribunal.  That

10  Rule, in relevant part, states that "In an ex parte

11  proceeding, a lawyer shall inform the tribunal of all

12  material facts known to the lawyer that will enable the

13  tribunal to make an informed decision whether or not

14  those facts are adverse.

15       Count Six, we are alleging that Mr. Padgett

16  violated Rule 8.1: Bar Admission & Disciplinary Matters,

17  in relevant part, that lawyer [sic] states that "a

18  lawyer in connection with a disciplinary matter shall

19  not (a) knowingly make a false statement of material

20  fact."

21       And, lastly, as to Count Seven, we are

22  alleging that Mr. Padgett violated RPC 8.4 Misconduct.

23  Now, that Rule, in relevant part, states "It is

24  professional misconduct for a lawyer to (a) violate or

25  attempt to violate the Rules of Professional Conduct,
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1  knowingly assist or induce another to do so or do so

2  through the acts of another;

3       (c) states that "It is professional misconduct

4  for a lawyer to engage in conduct involving dishonesty,

5  fraud, deceit, or misrepresentation"; and lastly, "It is

6  misconduct for a lawyer to engage in conduct that is

7  prejudicial to the administration of justice."

8       Those are the facts as we have alleged, and

9  because we are in a Default Hearing, those allegations

10  will be deemed admitted.  At this point, I would like to

11  go over the penalty phase with the Panel.  In the

12  penalty phase, we are asked to look at -- we go off of

13  the ABA Annotated Standards for imposing sanctions on

14  lawyers.  The ABA recommends that we look at four

15  different factors when determining what disciplinary

16  sanction is appropriate in a case.

17       The first thing we're to look at is the duty

18  violated.  The second factor is to look at the mental

19  state of the Respondent Mr. Padgett. No. 3 is to

20  determine whether there have been injuries to the

21  client.  And No. 4, it is -- No. 4 we have to look at

22  the stipulated -- we have to look at the aggravating and

23  mitigating factors to determine whether or not the

24  baseline sanction, if it warrants a deviation upwards or

25  about downwards.
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1       So I will go through each of the four factors

2  for each of the counts.  As to Count One, RPC 1.2 Scope

3  of Representation & Allocation of Authority Between the

4  Client & Lawyer.  Mr. Padgett -- one second, my computer

5  just froze on me -- okay.  Perfect.  Sorry about that.

6       So as to Count One, RPC 1.2, that Rule again

7  states that essentially "A lawyer shall abide by the

8  client's decision concerning the objectives of

9  representation and shall consult with the client as to

10  the meanings by which they are to be pursued."

11       Now, this duty was violated by Mr. Padgett

12  when he withdrew the funds from Mr. Familian's case,

13  even though -- he withdrew $151,000 from Mr. Familian's

14  settlement award despite his express wish --

15  Mr. Familian's express wishes and his appellate

16  counsel's wishes to keep the funds there.  So, by not

17  following this directive, Mr. Padgett is in violation of

18  RPC 1.2, because he did not abide by the client's

19  decision concerning the objectives of the

20  representation.

21       As to Count Two, RPC 1.4: Communication, the

22  duty here owed was that Mr. Padgett should probably

23  inform clients of any decisions or circumstances that

24  required the client's consent and to reasonably consult

25  with the client about the means by which his objectives
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1  are to be accomplished, to reasonably inform the client

2  of the status of the matter, and should explain the

3  matter to the extent reasonably necessary to permit the

4  client to make informed decisions regarding the

5  representation.

6       Mr. Familian [sic] failed to uphold this duty

7  when he knowingly failed to adequately communicate with

8  Mr. Familian when he filed the motion for disbursement

9  as well as the order for disbursement.  At that point,

10  he -- yes, that was -- unfortunately Mr. Familian was

11  not aware of this until his appellate counsel was

12  looking at the case and realized that Mr. Padgett had

13  filed the motion and order in this case.  And so without

14  consulting with Mr. Familian about filing a motion and

15  order, Mr. Padgett did violate Rule 1.4: Communication.

16       As to Count Three, RPC 1.8: Conflict of

17  Interest: Current Clients and Specific Rules, again,

18  that Rule essentially states that a lawyer shall not

19  provide financial assistance to a client in connection

20  with pending or contemplated litigation.  In OBC19-0798

21  with the Ian Ritchie case, Mr. Padgett violated his duty

22  under 8.1 when he offered Mr. Ritchie to pay the amount

23  of the judgment against him.

24       Mr. Padgett knew that he was prohibited from

25  advancing the amount of the judgment to Mr. Ritchie, and
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1  that's demonstrated by his response to the State Bar

2  saying that he's not allowed to advance fees and costs.

3  So, for those reasons, Mr. Padgett did violate Rule 1.8

4  under Count Three.

5       As to Count Four, that concerns RPC 1.15:

6  Safekeeping Property.  This Rule establishes that

7  Mr. Padgett has a duty to keep the funds separate if

8  there's a dispute.  So it states that "When in the

9  course of representation a lawyer is in possession of

10  funds or other property in which two or more persons

11  claim interest, the property shall be kept separate by

12  the lawyer until the dispute is resolved."

13       The reason why Mr. Padgett violated this duty

14  is because there was a dispute as to the amount

15  Mr. Padgett was entitled to between him and Mr. Familian

16  concerning the judgment by the Court.  Despite this

17  dispute, Mr. Familian was under the -- Mr. Familian --

18  I'm sorry -- Mr. Familian believed that he was owed

19  approximately $70,000; however, Mr. Padgett ended up

20  withdrawing $151,000, close to $152,000.

21       Clearly, there was a dispute as to how much he

22  earned.  So when there is a dispute, as Rule 1.15

23  states, those funds in dispute must be kept separate

24  until that dispute is resolved.  So, for those reasons,

25  Mr. Padgett did violate his duty under 1.15:
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1  Safekeeping Property.

2       As to Count Five, that is an allegation of

3  Mr. Padgett violating Rule 3.3: Candor Toward the

4  Tribunal.  Again, that Rule states, in relevant part, "a

5  lawyer shall inform the tribunal all material facts

6  known to the lawyer that will enable the tribunal to

7  make an informed decision, whether or not those facts

8  are adverse."

9       Mr. Padgett violated this duty when he filed

10  the Ex Parte Motion for disbursement to the courts as

11  well as the order to the court without informing the

12  court of the material fact that Mr. Familian had

13  requested that those funds remain on deposit with the

14  Court for his appellate case.  And that's -- for those

15  reasons, Mr. Padgett did violate his duty under

16  Rule 3.3.

17       As to Count Six, that concerns Rule 8.1: Bar

18  Admission & Disciplinary Matters.  In relevant part,

19  that states that "a lawyer in connection with a

20  disciplinary hear -- matter shall not knowingly make a

21  false statement of material fact."

22       Mr. Padgett violated this duty, as I explained

23  briefly earlier, when he told State Bar investigators

24  that he had not offered to advance funds to Mr. Ritchie

25  for his case, although despite the fact that Mr. Ritch
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1  -- there are -- we have correspondence between

2  Mr. Ritchie and Mr. Padgett indicating that he was -- he

3  did offer to advance funds to Mr. Ritchie.

4       So, for that reason, for knowingly making a

5  false statement of material fact to State Bar

6  investigators, Mr. Padgett did invite his duty under

7  8.1.

8       Lastly, as to Count Seven, that allegation is

9  concerning RPC 8.4: Misconduct.  Again, that states, in

10  relevant part, that it's "misconduct for a lawyer to

11  violate or attempt to violate the RPC or knowing --

12  knowingly assist or induce another to do so."

13       It's professional "misconduct for a lawyer to

14  engage in conduct involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit or

15  misrepresentation," and it's "misconduct for a lawyer to

16  engage in conduct that is prejudicial to the

17  administrative -- administration of justice."

18       Now, Mr. Padgett violated this duty under 8.4

19  when he engaged in acts involving dishonesty, fraud,

20  deceit or misrepresentation both by deceitfully offering

21  to pay Mr. Ritchie for a breach of a contract matter and

22  also by misrepresenting those facts to the State Bar.

23       Additionally, Mr. Padgett also engaged in

24  conduct that is prejudicial to the administration of

25  justice when he submitted ex parte motions and -- an ex
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1  parte motion and order to the Court in the Familian case

2  despite Mr. Familian's wishes to keep the money with the

3  Court.  And so, for those reasons, we do believe that

4  Mr. Padgett has violated his duty under 8.4: Misconduct.

5       Now, as I stated earlier, the ABA wants us to

6  go through four different factors.  I just went over the

7  first factor as to the duty Mr. Padgett owed to

8  Mr. Familian as well as Mr. Ritchie.  As to the second

9  factor the ABA wants us to look at, they do want us to

10  look at the mental state of Mr. Padgett.

11       Now, the State Bar, in its Amended Complaint

12  alleged that Mr. Padgett's mental state for all seven

13  counts was that he did -- he violated those duties

14  knowingly.  And in the ABA Guidelines, the Second

15  Edition, they define a knowing mental state as did have

16  a conscious awareness of the nature or attendant

17  circumstances of his conduct but didn't have the

18  conscious objective or purpose to accomplish a

19  particular result.

20       And so, for those matters, we do believe that

21  he committed all those acts knowingly.  Briefly, as to

22  the first one with the Scope of Representation, he

23  knowingly withdrew the funds against the wishes of

24  Mr. Familian and his appellate accountant and did so,

25  anyway, so he knowingly committed that violation.
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1       As to Count Two, RPC 1.4: Communication,

2  Mr. Padgett knowingly did fail to communicate with

3  Mr. Familian that he was filing a motion and an order

4  for disbursal.  Because of the fact he didn't notify

5  them, he knowingly filed that motion without talking to

6  Mr. Familian.

7       As to Count Three, the conflict of interest,

8  Mr. Padgett did knowingly offer to pay the amount of the

9  judgment against Mr. Ritchie as evidenced by this

10  correspondence between the two.

11       As to Count Four, Mr. Padgett knowingly

12  withdrew the funds from Mr. Familian's judgment, even

13  though there was a dispute that was occurring, so he

14  should have kept that.  He should have only withdrawn

15  approximately $70,000, because that's the amount that

16  was not in dispute.  And so, for those reasons, he did

17  knowingly withdraw those funds when he should have kept

18  them separate.

19       As to Count Five, Candor Toward the Tribunal,

20  Mr. Padgett did knowingly file an ex parte motion and an

21  order disbursing the funds despite the fact that

22  Mr. Familian advised against it.  As to Count Six -- so

23  for Count Five, Mr. Padgett did knowingly file those

24  motions.

25       As to Count Six, the Bar Admission &
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1  Disciplinary Matters, as I stated, he's not supposed to

2  make a false statement of material fact.  When State Bar

3  asked Mr. Padgett about what's going on with

4  Mr. Ritchie's case, he did state that he did not advance

5  funds despite the fact that we have evidence

6  contradicting that, so Mr. Padgett did knowingly make a

7  false statement of material fact.

8       Lastly, as to Count Seven, the Misconduct,

9  Mr. Padgett knowingly engaged in acts involving

10  dishonesty, fraud, deceit or misrepresentation in the

11  Ritchie case by offering to pay by misrepresenting

12  material facts to the State Bar as well as engaging in

13  conduct that is prejudicial to the administration of

14  justice by submitting the ex parte motion and order in

15  the Familian case, and so that satisfies the second

16  factor that the ABA wants us to look at.

17       As to the third factor, the ABA wants us to

18  look at what injury occurred.  Now, with all seven of

19  these Counts, ultimately, Mr. -- in the first case,

20  OBC19-0604, in Mr. Familian's case, his appeal didn't go

21  anywhere.  He -- to the best of our knowledge, he's

22  still yet to receive any funds from the $150- almost

23  $152,000 that was awarded to him and that Mr. Padgett

24  withdrew, and so there was absolutely injury in

25  Mr. Familian's case.

ROA Page 122



1       As to Mr. Ritchie's case in OBC19-0798, there

2  was injury.  Mr. Ritchie did file an appeal in his

3  breach of contract matter, because of relying on

4  Mr. Padgett's offer to pay for the judgment, he really

5  wasn't doing anything.  He wasn't able to secure

6  appellate counsel, and that appeal went nowhere as well,

7  and so, for those reasons, there was injury to

8  Mr. Ritchie.

9       And, lastly, the ABA wants us to look at the

10  stipulat -- the aggravating, any aggravating or

11  mitigating factors for Mr. Padgett during these

12  allegations.  And where we find these aggravating and

13  mitigating factors is found in Supreme Court Rule 102.5,

14  and so as to the aggravating factors, there are quite a

15  few.  I listed seven on mine.

16       So the first one would be (b), for -- I

17  believe it's 102.5(1)(b), yes.  And so, (b), an

18  aggravating factor is a dishonest or selfish motive.

19  Based on his conduct of withdrawing funds that were in

20  dispute with -- withdrawing money that's in dispute for

21  filing ex parte motions or attempting to later receive

22  an additional $14,000 from that judgment for

23  Mr. Familian's case, he did have a dishonest and selfish

24  motive as to receiving more money.

25       And just by way of reference, as to that, that
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1  attempt, so the motion for disbursement that Mr. Padgett

2  filed, it was filed on June 8th, 2018.  The Order for

3  that motion was filed four days later.  On June 12th,

4  2018, and not until July 17th of 2019, that is when --

5  you know, over a year later -- Mr. Padgett did file a

6  proposed order attempting to receive an additional

7  approximately $14,000 from the award to Mr. Familian.

8       Another factor that I listed as an aggravating

9  factor is under Supreme Court Rule 102.5(1)(c), and that

10  factor is a pattern of misconduct.  If you look at the

11  timeline of these allegations as well as when he filed,

12  when he tried to obtain another $14,000, those are kind

13  of spread out, and so there is a pattern of misconduct

14  with Mr. Padgett.

15       Another factor is 102.5(1)(d), which is

16  multiple offenses.  As you can see, this wasn't just a

17  one-time thing.  This was ongoing.  There were multiple

18  different offenses that occurred.  Another factor was

19  102.5(1)(e), and that factor states bad faith

20  obstruction of a disciplinary proceeding by failing to

21  comply with rules or orders.

22       As I stated earlier, I did speak to

23  Mr. Padgett.  I informed him of when his answer

24  deadline.  We stipulated to an agreement for a new

25  deadline.  I informed him of the notice, that I would be
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1  filing it, yet he still didn't file a verified answer or

2  a response.

3       By the time the Scheduling Order was in place

4  detailing all these events, Mr. Padgett did not comply

5  with the Scheduling Order whatsoever.  There was no

6  initial disclosure filed.  There was no final disclosure

7  filed, no answer filed.  In addition, I believe it was

8  either the Initial Case Conference or the prehearing

9  conference that Mr. Padgett was to attend, and he did

10  not call in.

11       Another factor listed was S.C.R. 102.5(1)(g).

12  That factor is the refusal to acknowledge the wrongful

13  nature of the conduct.  That's easily demonstrated in

14  the Familian case where, despite filing the ex parte

15  motion and order, Mr. Familian and his appellate counsel

16  told Mr. Padgett not to touch the remaining funds that

17  are in dispute.  Despite that, more than a year later,

18  he attempted to obtain an additional approximately

19  $14,000.

20       And as to the Ritchie case, you know, he told

21  the State Bar that he's not supposed to be advancing

22  fees or costs; however, in correspondence between

23  Mr. Padgett and Mr. Ritchie, it does demonstrate that he

24  did have the intent and did let Mr. Ritchie know that he

25  would pay for that amount.  And so, for those reasons,
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1  there is, I think, a clear refusal to acknowledge the

2  wrongful nature of his conduct.

3       Another factor for aggravating factors is

4  S.C.R. 102.5(1)(i), and that factor is the substantial

5  experience in the practice of law.  Mr. Padgett was

6  barred in Nevada on December 28th, 2000, and so he's

7  been in practice for almost 20 years, 19 and a half

8  years, so he does have -- he's not a new attorney.  He

9  should have known better after practicing for 19 and a

10  half years.

11       And, lastly S.C.R. 102.5(1)(j), that factor

12  states an indifference to making restitution.  As I

13  stated, to the best of my knowledge, to the best of my

14  investigator's knowledge, Mr. Familian has not received

15  any of the profits from the approximately $152,000 that

16  was in dispute.

17       As well as Mr. Ritchie's case, when he was

18  stating, he told Mr. Ritchie that he was going to pay --

19  pay the judgment, Mr. Ritchie relied on that promise,

20  and, as a result, Mr. Ritchie did not obtain new

21  appellate counsel.  His appeal didn't go anywhere.

22       And I think that those facts in conjunction

23  with one another demonstrate Mr. Padgett's indifference

24  to making restitution, especially in Mr. Familian's

25  case.  And so, for those reasons -- and that's the last
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1  factor that the ABA would like us to look at.

2       Now, as far as what my recommendation is,

3  based on these facts, the ABA's handbook gives us a

4  guideline and gives us a baseline sanction level.  It's

5  very akin to practicing in federal court in criminal

6  cases where everything's scored out, where you do A, B,

7  and C, and you get this, you know, this is where you're

8  at.  So, similarly, we have something like that.

9       And over, in this case, we are looking at ABA

10  Standard 4.12, and that standard states that suspension

11  is generally appropriate when a lawyer knows or should

12  know that he is dealing improperly with client property

13  and causes injury or potential injury to a client.

14       Now, this is based off, really, the Count Four

15  of the allegation of RPC 1.15.  That's where ABA

16  Standard 4.12 comes into play.  As it's stated,

17  "Suspension is generally appropriate when a lawyer knows

18  that he's dealing improperly with client property and

19  causes injury."

20       As I stated earlier -- and I'm going to use

21  Mr. Familian's case as an example, OBC19-0604 --

22  Mr. Padgett knew that he was dealing improperly with

23  Mr. Familian's funds.  That's demonstrated by the fact

24  that Mr. Familian told him that he could withdraw

25  approximately $70,000 from that but to keep the
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1  remaining proceeds with Clark County until the dispute

2  is resolved.  He did not do that.

3       Mr. Padgett still withdrew the entire amount,

4  and not only that, over a year later, after he filed the

5  motion and the order for disbursement, he attempted to

6  do so again and obtain an additional approximately

7  $14,000 almost a year -- more than a year later, a year

8  and a month later.

9       And so that conduct and those acts clearly

10  demonstrate that Mr. Padgett knew that he was dealing

11  improperly with Mr. Familian's property.  And, as I

12  stated, Mr. Familian has not received any of those

13  funds.

14       I would dispute that his appeal didn't go

15  anywhere, so there was clearly, clearly injury to

16  Mr. Familian.  And so the baseline for that, I think

17  it's clear-cut that a suspension is warranted here.

18  Now, the question is how long of a suspension.  Now, as

19  I said, we are also to look at the aggravating and

20  mitigating factors.

21       When going through the aggravating and

22  mitigating factors, I listed seven different aggravating

23  factors, again, that's dishonest -- No. 1, dishonest or

24  selfish motive; No. 2, a pattern of misconduct; No. 3,

25  multiple offenses; No. 4, bad faith obstruction of the
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1  disciplinary proceeding by failing to comply with the

2  rules or orders, No. 5, refusal to acknowledge the

3  wrongful nature of his conduct; No. 6, substantial

4  experience in the practice of law; and, No. 7, an

5  indifference to making restitution.

6       Now, when I looked at the mitigating factors,

7  I went through all of them.  I did not believe that

8  there were any mitigating factors that applied to this

9  case today, so the only thing you're looking at is these

10  seven aggravating factors that I listed as well as the

11  ABA suspension baseline.

12       When you take the baseline sanction of

13  suspension coupled with the seven aggravating factors

14  that I listed, the State Bar would be seeking a

15  suspension of Mr. Padgett for a period of five years.

16       In addition to that, we are, pursuant Supreme

17  Court Rule 120, which is costs, Mr. Padgett shall pay a

18  fee of $2,500 for the proceedings for the -- assuming a

19  suspension is decided upon, the fee would be $2,500 and

20  anything of the costs for these disciplinary

21  proceedings.

22       So not only the $2,500 as mandated by

23  S.C.R. 120 for the suspension, but all the hard costs

24  that the State Bar incurred for putting on these -- with

25  this case; and, with that, the State Bar rests.  And if
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1  the Panel has any questions for me, I'll be happy to

2  answer them.

3       CHAIR OSWALT:  This is Dana Oswalt.  I don't

4  have any questions at this time.

5       MR. NAQVI:  This is Farhan Naqvi.  I was

6  wondering if Mr. Padgett has any prior history of

7  discipline with the State Bar.

8       MR. GOSIOCO:  Currently, Mr. Padgett -- when

9  we filed this case, Mr. Padgett did not have any

10  disciplinary record.  However, I will state that

11  tomorrow, assuming if Mr. Padgett handles -- if he's

12  back in the same way as he did this case, I will be

13  filing another Notice of Intent to proceed on a default

14  basis on a different case of his tomorrow.

15       MR. NAQVI:  Thank you.

16       CHAIR OSWALT:  How many open complaints does

17  Mr. Padgett have with the State Bar, aside from the two

18  that we're dealing with during this hearing?

19       MR. GOSIOCO:  He has one other case, and

20  that's going to be handled by the Northern Board,

21  because all the facts in the grievance are listed there,

22  so we filed it there.  But he does have one, we did file

23  a complaint.  I can't remember the date offhand, but I

24  do know that today is the deadline for him to file a

25  verified answer or response.
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1       CHAIR OSWALT:  Okay.  So he had -- in addition

2  to these cases, he has one down south and one up north?

3       MR. GOSIOCO:  So these two are the ones in the

4  south, but the case I'm referring to where he has an

5  answer due today is up north.

6       CHAIR OSWALT:  Okay.

7       MR. NAQVI:  This is Farhan Naqvi again.  Did

8  Mr. Padgett, when you spoke to him over the phone,

9  advise you of the circumstances for his failure to

10  timely file whatever he needed to and why he was

11  requesting an extension?  And did you have a

12  conversation with him after the fact when he failed to

13  meet the extension that you granted him regarding the

14  reasons?

15       MR. GOSIOCO:  Well, based on my recollection

16  and based on the notes I put -- whenever I speak to

17  somebody, I always make a note of it, including the

18  subject matter that was discussed.  The only thing I can

19  remember him speaking of was that he was busy, that he

20  had -- I can look at -- I know he mentioned that he had

21  trials that were coming up and several motions that were

22  due.

23       And from my recollection, like I stated, that

24  was the only reasoning he offered for not filing an

25  answer or a response.  Now, as to your second question
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1  whether I contacted him after, I did attempt to contact

2  him.  Since those conversations on the phone, I was not

3  able to contact Mr. Padgett.

4       MR. NAQVI:  One other question, when you

5  referenced the e-mail that he sent saying something to

6  the effect of "I wouldn't advance a client money to pay

7  some sort of a judgment," which I believe you indicated

8  was contrary to some representations that are part of

9  the file, what are you referring to specifically?

10       MR. GOSIOCO:  So, specifically, this was the

11  case in Mr. Ritchie's -- this was Mr. Ritchie's case,

12  OBC19-0798, the issue there was we were trying to

13  determine whether or not he did tell Mr. Ritchie that he

14  was going to advance funds, that he would be paying that

15  judgment for Mr. Ritchie.

16       Now, when the complaint came in, and we did

17  speak -- our investigators did speak to Mr. Padgett.

18  Now, when they spoke to Mr. Padgett and they asked

19  whether or not that was true, whether or not Mr. Padgett

20  did in fact offer Mr. Ritchie to pay for the settlement

21  -- for the award, he stated that, "No -- and let me see

22  if I can exactly what he said.

23       When he spoke to the -- when he was questioned

24  about that, he did state that "I'm not permitted to

25  advance funds to a client nor would I have agreed to do
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1  so in Mr. Ritchie's case."  We do have an exhibit that

2  was included, which was Exhibit -- it's in Exhibit 1, I

3  believe --

4       CHAIR OSWALT:  Are you referring to the text

5  messages?

6       MR. GOSIOCO:  Yes.

7       CHAIR OSWALT:  So I have them saved as

8  Exhibit 24, but since I don't have the first two, I

9  believe it's Exhibit 26 in your packet.

10       MR. GOSIOCO:  Yes, I believe that's correct.

11  Let me see.

12       CHAIR OSWALT:  And page 4 of 9 of that one is

13  where he says he will pay it.

14       MR. GOSIOCO:  Yes.  And so that's specifically

15  the statement I was referring to.

16       MR. NAQVI:  Okay.  Perfect.  Thank you for

17  referring me to that.

18       MR. GOSIOCO:  Does the Panel have any other

19  questions for me?

20       CHAIR OSWALT:  This is Dana Oswalt.  I do not.

21       MR. NAQVI:  This is Farhan Naqvi.  I do not.

22       MR. GOSIOCO:  Okay.  Seeing that there are no

23  questions, the State Bar respectfully rests.

24       CHAIR OSWALT:  Okay.  Since Respondent did not

25  appear, I think we are ready to deliberate.  I believe
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1  someone was going to set up a breakout room for us to go

2  to?

3       MR. GOSIOCO:  Yes.  I believe Sonia will be

4  taking care of that right now.

5       CHAIR OSWALT:  Okay.

6       MR. NAQVI:  Thank you.

7         (Recess taken.)

8       CHAIR OSWALT:  Okay.  So we are back on the

9  record for Case Number OBC19-0604 and OBC19-0798.

10       The Screening Pan -- or the Screening Panel --

11  the Hearing Panel has deliberated, and we did agree with

12  the Bar that there were Rule violations of Rule 1.2,

13  1.4, 1.8, 1.15, 3.3, 8.1, and 8.4 as alleged in the

14  Complaint.  We also agreed with the Bar, with the

15  exception of the violation of 1.2, and we felt that was

16  an intentional violation.

17       The remainder of the Counts were in the

18  knowing mental state, so that would be for Rule 1.4,

19  1.8, 1.15, 3.3, 8.1, and 8.4.  We also did make a

20  finding that actual injuries were incurred or sustained

21  by both Familian and the Ritchie, so in both of the

22  complaints that we're dealing with today.

23       As far as aggravating and mitigating standards

24  -- or factors, we did agree with the Bar as far as

25  aggravation that there was 102.5(1)(b), a dishonest or
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1  selfish motive; also under that same Rule, (c), with a

2  pattern of misconduct; (d), multiple offenses; (e), bad

3  faith in the disciplinary proceedings; (g), the refusal

4  to acknowledge the wrongful nature of the acts; (i),

5  substantial experience in the practice of law; and (j),

6  indifference to making restitution.

7       As far as mitigating factors, we did find that

8  there was an absence of prior discipline.  We did under

9  -- we do understand that there are open complaints, but,

10  as of now, we haven't seen any that have been

11  adjudicated and resulted in actual discipline to the

12  Respondent, and so we added that as a mitigation -- or a

13  mitigating factor.

14       And we agree that a five-year suspension in

15  light of the information that we do have is appropriate,

16  that he should be responsible for the $2,500 under

17  S.C.R. 120 as well as the actual costs of the

18  proceedings.

19       MR. GOSIOCO:  Thank you.  (Inaudible) with the

20  five-year suspension?  I know per S.C.R. 116, if an

21  attorney is suspended for consecutive five years or more

22  that they're required to take retake the bar exam.  Was

23  that deliberated as well?

24       CHAIR OSWALT:  So it was my understanding that

25  it was anything greater than a five-year suspension
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1  results in the requirement to take the bar again.  So,

2  no, we did not discuss that, but I was thinking we would

3  have needed to suspend him an additional day.  Am I

4  wrong about that?

5       MR. GOSIOCO:  Let me just double-check.  So I

6  have under Supreme Court Rule 116(5), and that's

7  entitled "Decision on Reinstatement and Conditions,"

8  there is a sentence that says, "If an attorney has been"

9  -- okay, yeah, five years or more -- I apolo -- "If an

10  attorney has been continuously suspended for five years

11  or more," the time -- okay.  Yes.

12       CHAIR OSWALT:  So, no, we didn't specifically

13  discuss that, but if that's what the Rule said, and we

14  did determine that a five-year suspension was

15  appropriate, then that would -- then that would be

16  included in one of the terms for his reinstatement.

17  Does anyone from the Panel have a problem about that or

18  do you want to go back and discuss the --

19       MR. OSSOWSKI:  I'm okay with it.

20       MR. NAQVI:  Same.

21       CHAIR OSWALT:  Okay.  So I think we're good

22  with that as well.

23       MR. GOSIOCO:  Okay.  So I believe at that

24  point, then, the suspension should be -- it should be

25  five years and a day.  I don't know if you guys want to
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1  deliberate that as well?

2       CHAIR OSWALT:  Well, no, it actually does say

3  if it was five years or more.

4       MR. GOSIOCO:  Okay.

5       CHAIR OSWALT:  And so I think five years is

6  fine.

7       MR. GOSIOCO:  Okay.  That sounds good to me.

8       CHAIR OSWALT:  Okay.  Does anyone else have

9  any questions?

10       MR. NAQVI:  I don't have (inaudible).

11       CHAIR OSWALT:  You know, I think that

12  concludes the hearing then at this point.

13       MR. GOSIOCO:  Perfect.  Well, thank you guys

14  so much for being here.  I know this isn't what you guys

15  might want to do on a Monday morning at 9:00, but thank

16  you guys so much for your help and your participation.

17  I truly appreciate it.

18       CHAIR OSWALT:  No problem.  Thank you.  Have a

19  good day, everyone.

20       MR. OSSOWSKI:  Thank you.

21       MS. DEL RIO:  And, Carla, we will need the

22  transcript.

23         (Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings was

24         recessed at 10:40 a.m.)

25
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1          REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

2  STATE OF NEVADA   )
            )  ss
3  COUNTY OF CLARK   )

4    I, Carla N. Bywaters, a duly certified court
  reporter licensed in and for the State of Nevada, do
5  hereby certify:

6    That I reported the taking of the foregoing
  proceedings at the time and place aforesaid;
7
    That I thereafter transcribed my shorthand notes
8  into typewriting and that the typewritten transcript of
  said proceedings is a complete, true and accurate record
9  of testimony provided at said time to the best of my
  ability.
10
    I further certify that I am not a relative,
11  employee or independent contractor of counsel of any of
  the parties involved in said action; nor a person
12  financially interested in the action; nor do I have any
  other relationship with any of the parties or with
13  counsel of any of the parties involved in the action
  that may reasonably cause my impartiality to be
14  questioned.

15    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand in
  the County of Clark, State of Nevada, this 23rd day of
16  June 2020.
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NOTA
DANIEL F. POLSENBERG (SBN 2376)
JOEL D. HENRIOD (SBN 8492)
ABRAHAM G. SMITH (SBN 13,250)
LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169-5996
(702) 949-8200
DPolsenberg@LRRC.com
JHenriod@LRRC.com
ASmith@LRRC.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
DKB, LLC and DKB II, LLC

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

DKB, LLC, a Nevada limited liability
corporation; and DKB II, LLC, a Nevada
limited liability corporation, collectively,

Plaintiffs,
vs.

COUNTY OF CLARK, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada; DOE
GOVERNMENT AGENCIES I-X; DOE
CORPORATIONS I-X; and DOE
PARTNERSHIPS I-X,

Defendants.

Case No. A-12-668136-C

Dept. No. XXVI

NOTICE OF APPEARANCE

Please take notice that DANIEL F. POLSENBERG and JOEL D. HENRIOD of

the law firm of LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP appear as attorneys for

plaintiffs DKB, LLC and DKB II, LLC in the above-captioned case.

Dated this 12th day of June, 2017.

LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP

By /s/ Joel D. Henriod
DANIEL F. POLSENBERG (SBN 2376)
JOEL D. HENRIOD (SBN 8492)
ABRAHAM G. SMITH (SBN 13,250)
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
(702) 949-8200

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

Case Number: A-12-668136-C

Electronically Filed
6/12/2017 4:36 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the 12th day of June, 2017, I served the foregoing

“Notice of Appearance” on counsel by the Court’s electronic filing system and by

courtesy email to the persons and addresses listed below:

LESLIE A. NIELSEN

DISTRICT ATTORNEY – CIVIL DIVISION

500 South Grand Central Parkway
P.O. Box 552215
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155
Leslie.Neilsen@ClarkCountyDA.com

/s/ Jessie M. Helm
An Employee of Lewis Roca Rothgerber Christie LLP
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DECLARATION OF JOEL D. HENRIOD 

I, Joel D. Henriod, declare as follows: 

1. I am an attorney at Lewis Roca Rothgerber Christie LLP and was 

an attorney of record for plaintiffs DKB, LLC and DKB II, LLC in DKB, LLC et 

al. v. County of Clark et al., Case No. A668136 in the Eighth Judicial District 

Court, retained as appellate counsel along with my partner Dan Polsenberg and 

our associate Abraham Smith.  Bruce Familian is the principal of both DKB, 

LLC and DKB, II. 

2. On or around June 20, 2018, I became aware that Brian Padgett’s 

office had procured an order from the district court authorizing the clerk of the 

court to disburse funds deposited by defendant Clark County.  I spoke with Mr. 

Familian about the order and informed him that it came as a surprise to us. 

3. On June 20, 2018, I wrote an email to Amy Sugden, who worked 

with Brian Padgett on the DKB case, expressing concern about the order and 

frustration that they had procured it without informing my office (their co-coun-

sel) or Mr. Familian (their client).  (Ex. 1.) 

4. I also warned that withdrawing the funds might jeopardize Mr. Fa-

milian’s case by risking an argument of waiver under NRS 37.100(6) (“Applica-

tion by the defendant to the court for withdrawal of part or all of the money de-

posited and the payment of that money to the defendant does not prejudice the 

right of the defendant to contest the amount of compensation to be finally 

awarded. The receipt by the defendant of a part or all of the money deposited 

must be conditioned upon the waiver of all defenses except those relating to the 

amount of compensation.”).)  (Id.) 

5. The email communicated that Mr. Familian did not authorize Mr. 

Padgett’s office to withdraw those funds and that he would have forbidden it 

had they sought his approval.  (Id.) 
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6. Ms. Sugden replied that they had sought the order “to get the mat-

ter back on the radar for Judge Sturman,” pointed out that Mr. Padgett’s firm 

was still owed attorney’s fees and costs, and disagreed with our concerns about 

a potential waiver.  (Ex. 1.) 

7. The next day, on June 21, 2019, I emailed in response a pointed 

question as to whether the funds had already been transferred to Mr. Padgett’s 

office.  (Ex. 1.)  I received no email in reply. 

8. A few days later, I spoke with Ms. Sudgen over the phone.  I ex-

plained that, although Dan Polsenberg and I shared her interpretation of NRS 

37.100, we were concerned nevertheless that Judge Sturman or the Nevada Su-

preme Court might disagree with that position.  We advocated caution in the 

face of that uncertainty.  I told her that Mr. Familian agreed with our recom-

mendation and reiterated his demand that funds not be withdrawn. 

9. Approximately four months later, Mr. Padgett’s office withdrew the 

funds without warning or consulting us. 

10. Incidentally, as we foresaw, defendant Clark County did argue in 

the context of a dispute over prejudgment interest that plaintiffs’ “deposit [wa]s 

the equivalent of a deposit made in eminent [domain] cases pursuant to NRS 

37.100(6) or NRS 37.170,” even though its withdrawal “may come with ‘condi-

tions.’”  (Ex. 2.)  Indeed, Clark County alternatively argued that the Court’s 

granting Mr. Padgett’s motion “requesting the immediate and direct disburse-

ment of the funds on deposit” forfeited DKB’s right to interest after that 

date.  (Id.)  Although the Court entered our proposed judgment rather than the 

county’s, that risk and controversy arose nonetheless and would have created  

an issue for the county on appeal.     

Dated this 27th day of August, 2019. 

/s/ Joel D. Henriod  
JOEL D. HENRIOD (SBN 8492) 
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1

Helm, Jessica

From: Henriod, Joel D. <JHenriod@lrrc.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 21, 2018 10:01 AM
To: 'Amy Sugden'; 'brian@brianpadgett.com'
Cc: 'Bruce Familian'; Polsenberg, Daniel F.; Smith, Abraham; neal@hyperionlegal.com
Subject: RE: DKB, LLC v. Clark County:  Withdrawal of Deposit

Amy, 
 
Have the funds already transferred? 
 
Joel 
 

Joel D. Henriod 
Las Vegas Office Managing Partner 
702.474.2681 office 
702.743.0212 mobile 
jhenriod@lrrc.com 

_____________________________ 

 

Lewis Roca Rothgerber Christie LLP 
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
lrrc.com 

 
 
From: Amy Sugden [mailto:amy@briancpadgett.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, June 20, 2018 6:04 PM 
To: Henriod, Joel D.; 'brian@brianpadgett.com' 
Cc: 'Bruce Familian'; Polsenberg, Daniel F.; Smith, Abraham 
Subject: Re: DKB, LLC v. Clark County: Withdrawal of Deposit 
 
Joel, 
 
As you know we have been patiently awaiting the Court to issue its final rulings on the motions for attorney’s 
fees and costs which are outstanding.  We sent requests to the law clerk in Dept. 26 to try and gently inquire 
as to the status of those issues, but to no avail.  Thus, we put forth the attached motion to get the matter back 
on the radar for Judge Sturman, which she recognized at the June 12 hearing. 
 
Contrary to your assertion below, I did reach out to Bruce on November 14, 2017 about releasing the funds 
and was not “forbidden” from doing so.    
 
Our collective goals are to bring this matter to a judgment that is appealable, so we can all move this 
forward.  (Plus, our office and Kirby’s still have outstanding attorney’s fees owed and costs to be 
reimbursed).   Typically, our preferred manner of obtaining a final judgment in eminent domain is to complete 
all the post-trial briefing (i.e., attorney’s fees and costs) and put it into one pleading entitled “Final Judgment 
and Order of Condemnation” that becomes appealable.   
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However, it is also possible under NRS 37.160 to have the court enter a final order of condemnation describing 
the property condemned and the purpose thereof (without finalization of the post-trial briefing) after the 
award is deposited.  I had emailed you about this back in January of this year (see attached email) on pursuing 
that route so you guys could go forward with your appeal, but never heard back on finalizing it. 
 
Finally, we respectfully disagree as to your concerns over any purported waiver as outlined below. NRS 37.100 
governs funds on deposit pursuant to an order for immediate occupancy that the government seeks in direct 
condemnation action.  The County never deposited funds pursuant to NRS 37.100 because this was an inverse 
condemnation case in which they disputed a taking ever occurred. 
 
I am happy to reach out to the County’s attorney to confirm the same understanding as well. 
 
Thank you, 
Amy 
 
 
From: "Henriod, Joel D." <JHenriod@lrrc.com> 
Date: Wednesday, June 20, 2018 at 11:48 AM 
To: Amy Sugden <amy@briancpadgett.com>, "'brian@brianpadgett.com'" <brian@brianpadgett.com> 
Cc: "bruce@familian.org" <bruce@familian.org>, "Polsenberg, Daniel F." <DPolsenberg@lrrc.com>, "Smith, 
Abraham" <ASmith@lrrc.com> 
Subject: DKB, LLC v. Clark County: Withdrawal of Deposit 
 
PRIVILEGED and CONFIDENTIAL 
  
Amy, 
  
It just came to our attention that your office obtained an order from the court directing disbursement of the funds on 
deposit, without informing us or Mr. Familian. 
  
Bruce does NOT authorize withdrawal of those funds, and would have forbidden it if you had asked for his approval.  We 
believe withdrawing the funds risks waiver of positions on appeal under NRS 37.100(6) (“Application by the defendant to 
the court for withdrawal of part or all of the money deposited and the payment of that money to the defendant does 
not prejudice the right of the defendant to contest the amount of compensation to be finally awarded. The receipt by 
the defendant of a part or all of the money deposited must be conditioned upon the waiver of all defenses except those 
relating to the amount of compensation.”) 
  
Please do not withdraw those funds. 
  
Joel 
  

Joel D. Henriod 
Las Vegas Office Managing Partner 
702.474.2681 office 
702.743.0212 mobile 
jhenriod@lrrc.com 

_____________________________ 

 

Lewis Roca Rothgerber Christie LLP 
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600 
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Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
lrrc.com 

  
  
 

 
This message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which they are addressed. If the reader of this message or an 
attachment is not the intended recipient or the employee or agent responsible for delivering the message or attachment to the intended recipient you are hereby 
notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or any attachment is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, 
please notify us immediately by replying to the sender. The information transmitted in this message and any attachments may be privileged, is intended only for 
the personal and confidential use of the intended recipients, and is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. §2510-2521.  
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Case Number: A-12-668136-C

ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
12/28/2018 2:39 PM
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Bruce Familian

From: Henriod, Joel D. <JHenriod@lrrc.com>
Sent: Wednesday, June 20, 2018 11:49 AM
To: amy@briancpadgett.com; 'brian@brianpadgett.com'
Cc: Bruce Familian; Polsenberg, Daniel F.; Smith, Abraham
Subject: DKB, LLC v. Clark County:  Withdrawal of Deposit

Importance: High

PRIVILEGED and CONFIDENTIAL 
 
Amy, 
 
It just came to our attention that your office obtained an order from the court directing disbursement of the funds on 
deposit, without informing us or Mr. Familian. 
 
Bruce does NOT authorize withdrawal of those funds, and would have forbidden it if you had asked for his approval.  We 
believe withdrawing the funds risks waiver of positions on appeal under NRS 37.100(6) (“Application by the defendant to 
the court for withdrawal of part or all of the money deposited and the payment of that money to the defendant does 
not prejudice the right of the defendant to contest the amount of compensation to be finally awarded. The receipt by 
the defendant of a part or all of the money deposited must be conditioned upon the waiver of all defenses except those 
relating to the amount of compensation.”) 
 
Please do not withdraw those funds. 
 
Joel 
 

Joel D. Henriod 
Las Vegas Office Managing Partner 
702.474.2681 office 
702.743.0212 mobile 
jhenriod@lrrc.com  

_____________________________ 

 

Lewis Roca Rothgerber Christie LLP 
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
lrrc.com 

 
 
 

 
This message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which they are addressed. If the reader of this message or an 
attachment is not the intended recipient or the employee or agent responsible for delivering the message or attachment to the intended recipient you are hereby 
notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or any attachment is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, 
please notify us immediately by replying to the sender. The information transmitted in this message and any attachments may be privileged, is intended only for 
the personal and confidential use of the intended recipients, and is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. §2510-2521.  
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Bruce Familian

From: Amy Sugden <amy@briancpadgett.com>
Sent: Friday, June 29, 2018 10:59 AM
To: Bruce Familian; Brian Padgett
Cc: Henriod, Joel D.; Polsenberg, Daniel F.; neal@hyperionlegal.com; KGruchow@leachjohnson.com
Subject: Re: Clark County Case
Attachments: 2018_06_14_08_36_46[1].pdf; 11.16-5.17 Invoice .pdf; Verified Memo Costs.pdf

Good morning Bruce, 
 
Please see the attached invoices: 
 

(1) Invoice for Kirby’s trial work (check to be made payable to KCG Enterprises, Ltd.) 
(2) Invoice for Law Offices of Brian Padgett (trial work and post-trial work to May 2017. Please note we 

have not billed for any work completed on post-trial matters over the past year) 
 This invoice also includes the costs due and owing that Brian submitted payment for (which are 
highlighted on the attached Memorandum of Costs) 

 
Finally, we instructed the finance department not to issue the check. 
 
Thank you, 
Amy 
 
From: "bruce@familian.org" <bruce@familian.org> 
Date: Friday, June 22, 2018 at 2:27 PM 
To: Brian Padgett <brian@briancpadgett.com> 
Cc: Amy Sugden <amy@briancpadgett.com>, "Henriod, Joel D." <JHenriod@lrrc.com>, "Polsenberg, Daniel F." 
<DPolsenberg@lrrc.com>, "neal@hyperionlegal.com" <neal@hyperionlegal.com>, 
"KGruchow@leachjohnson.com" <KGruchow@leachjohnson.com> 
Subject: RE: Clark County Case 
 
Brian: 
  
Thank you for your response. 
  
I would greatly appreciate that since you don’t have a check in hand to stop the process of withdrawing the funds. I do 
not want to jeopardize any of my potential claims or waivers by taking the cash, even if you believe something different.
  
Also, please forward me a current bill outlining the balance owed, I have not seen a bill from your office for more than a 
year. 
  
If you have any questions, please let me know. 
  
Sincerely, 
  
Bruce Familian 
Manager 
DKB, LLC/DKB II, LLC 
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From: Brian Padgett <brian@briancpadgett.com>  
Sent: Friday, June 22, 2018 8:06 AM 
To: Bruce Familian <bruce@familian.org> 
Cc: Amy Sugden <amy@briancpadgett.com>; Henriod, Joel D. <JHenriod@lrrc.com>; Polsenberg, Daniel F. 
<DPolsenberg@lrrc.com>; neal@hyperionlegal.com; KGruchow@leachjohnson.com 
Subject: Re: Clark County Case 
  
Bruce,  
  
We have moved on the release now as the Court is finally at that point in post trial proceedings. We do not yet have the 
check in hand. 
  
We have made this move for release of funds just as we do for every client.  Pulling these funds will not jeopardize your 
rights on appeal.  Anyone who tells you otherwise does not deal in eminent domain. 
  
Finally, I’m going to send you another copy of our outstanding bill for services rendered.  You can choose to pay it out of 
pocket or via this release of funds.  Either way, we would like to have that resolved and then hand over all proceedings 
to the other attorneys you have hired who will do a fine job for you. 
  
Best regards, 

BCP 
  
iPhone 
 
On Jun 22, 2018, at 7:51 AM, Bruce Familian <bruce@familian.org> wrote: 

Brian & Amy: 
  
I remain very confused about your behavior as it relates to my case. There have been several emails 
back and forth when I directed both of you, very clearly, not to file any motions without my approval. I 
believe you owe me a complete explanation as to why you needed to file a motion and why you were 
compelled to file it on an OST. Throughout the history of this case I don’t recall us filing any motions on 
an OST, so what was the emergency in this case. In addition, you have known that Dan Polsenberg and 
Joel Herniod are Co‐Counsel in this matter regarding my appeal case. Why did you file the motion 
without consulting them or at a minimum send them a copy or notify them of your actions. 
  
I would greatly appreciate an answer today regarding your actions and the status of the funds; did you 
withdraw them or not? If you have withdrawn the funds please furnish a complete accounting as it 
relates to where the moneys are being held and the balance. 
  
If you have and questions, please let me know. 
  
Sincerely, 
  
Bruce Familian 
Manager 
DKB, LLC/DKB II, LLC 
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LAW OFFICES OF BRIAN C. PADGETT 
611 South Sixth Street 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
Phone 702-304-0123 
Fax  702-368-0123 

INVOICE 

INVOICE #126 
DATE: 6/26/2018 

 
TO:   
Bruce Familian 
5520 Stephanie Street 
Las Vegas, NV 89122 

FOR:  NOVEMBER 2016 – MAY 2017 BILLABLE HOURS 

 

DESCRIPTION HOURS RATE COSTS AMOUNT 

     

Brian Padgett  1.7 $395.00  $671.5 

Amy Sugden  125 $395.00  $49,375.00 

Jeremy Duke 3.2 $395.00  $908.00 

TOTAL BILLABLE ATTORNEY FEES    $50,955.00 

     

Costs – Copies    $44.00 

Cost Reimbursement     $18,902.73 

     

TOTAL ATTORNEYS’ FEES & COSTS    $69,945.73 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

 TOTAL DUE AND 
OWING  

 $69,945.73 
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TIME SHEET 
 

February - March 2017 
 

 

Date Time By Whom Task Performed 

2/1/17 1.1 ALS Email exchanges with client regarding amounts paid to 
date on attorneys fees and costs; confer with Mr. 
Padgett and Mr. Gruchow to confirm the same 

2/2/17 .7 ALS Receipt and review of email correspondence from client 
regarding proof of payments made to date; cross 
reference same with regard to finalizing motion for 
attorneys fees and costs 

2/6/17 .1 ALS Respond to email inquiry from the Court regarding 
recording fee for trial and payment thereof 

2/7/17 3.9 ALS Complete redactions and final preparation of time 
sheets for submission to the Court on filing of attorney’s 
fees; submit same for filing  

2/8/17 .1 ALS Receive and respond to email communication from 
LVLV regarding payment for trial services rendered 
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TIME SHEET 
 

February - March 2017 
 

 

2/8/17 4.4 ALS Continue to review and revise draft verified 
memorandum of costs and motion for reimbursement 
of costs; finalize exhibits for same and submit for filing  

2/15/17 .8 ALS Receive and respond to email correspondence from 
client regarding status of post judgment filings; confer 
with Mr. Gruchow regarding motion for prejudgment 
interest 

2/21/17 .6 ALS Receipt and review of County’s motion to retax cost; 
coordinate payments for outstanding trial invoices to 
the district court and LVLV 

2/24/17 .7 ALS Coordinate with opposing counsel regarding pending 
post trial motion practice and stipulation to extend 
briefing on the same; confer with Mr. Gruchow 
regarding potential to resolve with the County 

2/28/17 .3 ALS Receive and respond to client regarding status of 
hearings and briefing on post-trial motions, including 
the County’s motion to retax; telephone conference 
with LVLV regarding status of payment for trial services 
and respond to email correspondence for payment to 
Court for jury meal 
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TIME SHEET 
 

February - March 2017 
 

 

3/8/17 2.2 ALS Begin to draft opposition to County’s motion to retax 

3/09/17 1.1 ALS Continue to draft opposition to County’s motion to 
retax 

3/13/17 3.3 ALS Finish opposition to County’s motion to retax and 
submit for filing 

3/16/17 .9 JBD Review and revises draft motion for prejudgment 
interest  

3/20/17 2.3 JBD Draft reply to opposition to motion for attorney’s fees  
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TIME SHEET 
 

February - March 2017 
 

 

3/21/17 4.3 ALS Review and revise draft reply to opposition to motion 
for attorney’s fees, submit same for filing 

TOTAL 26.8   
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Helm, Jessica

From: Smith, Abraham
Sent: Tuesday, April 30, 2019 9:52 AM
To: brian@briancpadgett.com; ruth@briancpadgett.com
Cc: Polsenberg, Daniel F.; Henriod, Joel D.; Helm, Jessica; Crawford, Adam
Subject: RE: DKB v. Clark County withdrawal of deposited funds

Mr. Padgett, 
 
Bruce Familian needs to know the status of the $151,831.50 that the county had deposited with the clerk and that your 
office withdrew.  We have left multiple messages with your office without response.  Please call our office as soon as 
possible. 
 

Abraham G. Smith 
Associate 
702.474.2689 office 
702.216.6244 fax 
asmith@lrrc.com 

_____________________________ 

 

Lewis Roca Rothgerber Christie LLP 
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
lrrc.com 

 
From: Smith, Abraham  
Sent: Friday, April 26, 2019 9:19 AM 
To: 'ruth@briancpadgett.com' <ruth@briancpadgett.com> 
Cc: Polsenberg, Daniel F. <dpolsenberg@lrrc.com>; Henriod, Joel D. <jhenriod@lrrc.com>; Helm, Jessica 
<jhelm@lrrc.com>; Crawford, Adam <ACrawford@lrrc.com> 
Subject: DKB v. Clark County withdrawal of deposited funds 
 
Ruth, 
 
This is to follow up on our conversation Wednesday and this morning.  Please give Mr. Padgett this message regarding 
DKB v. Clark County, Case No. A-12-668136-C: Mr. Familian would like to know the status of the $151,831.50 that the 
county had deposited with the clerk and that your office withdrew. 
 
Thank you, 
 

Abraham G. Smith 
Associate 
702.474.2689 office 
702.216.6244 fax 
asmith@lrrc.com 

_____________________________ 

 

Lewis Roca Rothgerber Christie LLP 
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600 
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NRS 18.015  Lien for attorney’s fees: Amount; perfection; enforcement. 
      1.  An attorney at law shall have a lien: 
      (a) Upon any claim, demand or cause of action, including any claim for unliquidated damages, which has been 
placed in the attorney’s hands by a client for suit or collection, or upon which a suit or other action has been instituted. 
      (b) In any civil action, upon any file or other property properly left in the possession of the attorney by a client. 
      2.  A lien pursuant to subsection 1 is for the amount of any fee which has been agreed upon by the attorney and 
client. In the absence of an agreement, the lien is for a reasonable fee for the services which the attorney has rendered 
for the client. 
      3.  An attorney perfects a lien described in subsection 1 by serving notice in writing, in person or by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, upon his or her client and, if applicable, upon the party against whom the client has a 
cause of action, claiming the lien and stating the amount of the lien. 
      4.  A lien pursuant to: 
      (a) Paragraph (a) of subsection 1 attaches to any verdict, judgment or decree entered and to any money or property 
which is recovered on account of the suit or other action; and 
      (b) Paragraph (b) of subsection 1 attaches to any file or other property properly left in the possession of the 
attorney by his or her client, including, without limitation, copies of the attorney’s file if the original documents 
received from the client have been returned to the client, and authorizes the attorney to retain any such file or property 
until such time as an adjudication is made pursuant to subsection 6, 
 from the time of service of the notices required by this section. 
      5.  A lien pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 1 must not be construed as inconsistent with the attorney’s 
professional responsibilities to the client. 
      6.  On motion filed by an attorney having a lien under this section, the attorney’s client or any party who has 
been served with notice of the lien, the court shall, after 5 days’ notice to all interested parties, adjudicate the rights of 
the attorney, client or other parties and enforce the lien. 
      7.  Collection of attorney’s fees by a lien under this section may be utilized with, after or independently of any 
other method of collection. 
      (Added to NRS by 1977, 773; A 2013, 271) 
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10/1/2019 Leventhal v. Black & LoBello, 305 P. 3d 907 - Nev: Supreme Court 2013 - Google Scholar

https://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=2253054077300345857&q=leventhal+v.+black+%26+Lobello&hl=en&as_sdt=6,29&as_vis=1 1/5

305 P.3d 907 (2013)

Audie G. LEVENTHAL, Appellant,
v.

BLACK & LOBELLO, Respondent.
Audie G. Leventhal, Appellant,

v.
Black & LoBello, Respondent.

Nos. 58055, 59671.

July 11, 2013.

Supreme Court of Nevada.

*908 Robinson & Wood and Keith D. Kaufman, Las Vegas, for Appellant.908

Black & LoBello and Michele Touby LoBello, Las Vegas, for Respondent.

BEFORE PICKERING, C.J., HARDESTY and SAITTA, JJ.

OPINION

By the Court, PICKERING, C.J.:

This is an appeal from an order adjudicating a law firm's charging lien for fees against its former client under NRS 18.015.
The firm did not serve the statutory notices required to perfect its lien until the case was over. Under NRS 18.015(3), a
charging lien only attaches to a "verdict, judgment or decree entered and to ... money or property which is recovered on
account of the suit or other action, from the time of service of the notices required by this section." (Emphasis added.) Since
the decree became final months before the lien was perfected—and no prospect of post-perfection recovery appeared—the
lien should not have been adjudicated under NRS 18.015(4).

I.

After his wife, Jacqueline, sued appellant Audie Leventhal for divorce, he hired respondent Black & LoBello (LoBello) to
represent him. Leventhal's answer to Jacqueline's complaint included a counterclaim seeking to enforce a prenuptial
agreement that protected his separate property. In May 2010, a final decree of divorce was entered based on a stipulated
marital settlement agreement. Under the stipulated decree, Leventhal retained most of his separate property and was
awarded joint custody of his son.

Some months later, Jacqueline and Leventhal returned to court with a post-decree dispute over child custody. Still
representing Leventhal, LoBello argued that the post-decree proceeding was so far removed from the original divorce
proceeding that it was "really a new action initiated by Jacqueline's most recent Motion." In January 2011, Leventhal and
Jacqueline managed to resolve their custodial differences by stipulation. From what appears in the record, the post-decree
dispute centered on child custody; its stipulated resolution left Leventhal with joint custody and did not produce any new
recovery of money or property.

Leventhal paid LoBello for the firm's work through entry of the final decree. He did not pay LoBello, though, for the fees
charged to litigate the post-decree dispute. Eventually, LoBello filed a motion to withdraw as counsel, along with a notice of,
and a motion to adjudicate and enforce, a charging lien for unpaid attorney fees. By then, the divorce decree had been final
for months, the decree's property-distribution terms had been implemented, and even the post-decree child-custody dispute
had been resolved by filed stipulation. As LoBello later acknowledged, with the case effectively over, "[o]bviously,
[Leventhal] could not recover anything further."
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*909 Even so, the district court granted LoBello's post-decree motion to adjudicate and enforce a charging lien. It entered

personal judgment for LoBello and against Leventhal for $89,852.69. Leventhal appeals, and we reverse.[1]
909

II.

A.

Nevada attorneys have all the usual tools available to creditors to recover payment of their fees. For example, a law firm
can sue its client and obtain a money judgment for fees due, thereby acquiring, if recorded, a judgment lien against the
client's property. NRS 17.150(2). An attorney also has a passive or retaining lien against files or property held by the
attorney for the client. See Argentena Consol. Mining Co. v. Jolley Urga Wirth Woodbury & Standish, 125 Nev. 527, 532,
216 P.3d 779, 782 (2009). Finally, in an appropriate case, an attorney may assert a charging lien against the client's claim or
recovery under NRS 18.015. Id.; see NRS 18.015(5) ("Collection of attorney's fees by a [charging] lien under this section

may be utilized with, after or independently of any other method of collection.").[2]

A charging lien is "a unique method of protecting attorneys." Sowder v. Sowder, 127 N.M. 114, 977 P.2d 1034, 1037
(N.M.Ct. App.1999). Such a lien allows an attorney, on motion in the case in which the attorney rendered the services, to
obtain and enforce a lien for fees due for services rendered in the case. See Argentena, 125 Nev. at 532, 216 P.3d at 782. A
charging lien "is not dependent on possession, as in the case of the general or retaining lien. It is based on natural equity—
the client should not be allowed to appropriate the whole of the judgment without paying for the services of the attorney who
obtained it." 23 Williston on Contracts § 62:11 (4th ed. 2002).

The four requirements of NRS 18.015 must be met for a court to adjudicate and enforce a charging lien. See Schlang v. Key
Airlines, Inc., 158 F.R.D. 666, 669 (D.Nev.1994) (indicating that, in Nevada, a charging lien is a creature of statute). First,
there must be a "claim, demand or cause of action, ... which has been placed in the attorney's hands by a client for suit or
collection, or upon which a suit or other action has been instituted." NRS 18.015(1); see Argentena, 125 Nev. at 534, 216
P.3d at 783 (stating that where the client "did not seek or obtain any affirmative recovery in the underlying action, ... there
[is] no basis for a charging lien"). The lien is in the amount of the agreed-upon fee or, if none has been agreed upon, a

reasonable amount for the services rendered "on account of the suit, claim, demand or action." NRS 18.015(1).[3] Second,
the attorney must perfect the lien by serving "notice in writing, in person or by certified mail, return receipt requested, upon
his or her client and upon the party against whom the client has a cause of action, claiming the lien and stating the interest

which the attorney has in any cause of action." NRS 18.015(2).[4] Third, the statute sets a timing requirement: Once
perfected, the "lien attaches to any verdict, judgment or decree entered and to any money or property which is recovered on
account of the suit or other action, from the time of service of the notices required by this section." NRS 18.015(3). Fourth,
the attorney must timely file and properly serve a motion to adjudicate the lien. NRS 18.015(4). It is the interpretation of the
third requirement that is at *910 issue here. The proper construction of NRS 18.015 is a question of law that we review de
novo. Argentena, 125 Nev. at 531, 216 P.3d at 782.

910

B.

LoBello argues that the favorable outcomes in the property and child custody settlements both present recovery to which
the lien could attach and that, alternatively, a lien can attach even where no tang ble value is procured. In LoBello's view,
Argentena incorrectly precludes charging liens in cases that do not produce an affirmative recovery. LoBello further argues
that Argentena unconstitutionally disfavors attorneys who seek to defend or retain rights rather than procure property.
LoBello both misunderstands the nature of charging liens and ignores the attorney's ability to pursue client fees via other
means available to creditors.

Fundamentally, NRS 18.015(3) requires a client to assert an affirmative claim to relief, from which some affirmative recovery
can result. A charging lien cannot attach to the benefit gained for the client by securing a dismissal; it attaches to "the
tangible fruits" of the attorney's services. Glickman v. Scherer, 566 So.2d 574, 575 (Fla. Dist.Ct.App.1990); see also
Argentena, 125 Nev. at 534, 216 P.3d at 783-84; Sowder, 977 P.2d at 1037. This "fruit" is generally money, property, or other

actual proceeds gained by means of the claims asserted for the client in the litigation.[5] See Glickman, 566 So.2d at 575;
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see ABA/BNA Lawyers' Manual on Professional Conduct, at 41:2114 (2002) (discussing the types of property needed for a
charging lien to attach); see also Mitchell v. Coleman, 868 So.2d 639, 642 (Fla.Dist.Ct. App.2004).

Argentena is controlling precedent. There, the parties settled a personal injury action, and all claims against Argentena were
dismissed. 125 Nev. at 530, 216 P.3d at 781. Argentena's counsel moved to adjudicate its charging lien, but the only result
obtained in that case was that the claims against Argentena were dismissed; Argentena did not assert any counterclaims or
obtain an affirmative recovery. Id. Although Argentena unquestionably benefited from the dismissal, there was no recovery
to which a charging lien could attach. Id. at 534, 216 P.3d at 784.

Attempting to distinguish Argentena, LoBello argues that Leventhal did obtain an affirmative recovery in the underlying
case, namely the property retained in the divorce through the property settlement and the "financial benefits associated with
... child custody," including tax benefits and value in avoiding increased child support.

As to the child-custody benefits, LoBello fails to identify any tangible recovery derived from the resolution of this issue that is
appropriately subject to a charging lien. A child-custody agreement wherein Leventhal retained his share of custody and the
associated benefits does not demonstrate any affirmative claim to, or recovery of, money or property. Rather, LoBello
preserved Leventhal's previously established joint custody rights against his ex-wife's attempt to revise them. This is similar
to Argentena, where the attorney's efforts led to the dismissal of the case but did not involve an affirmative claim or
recovery.

As to the assets distr buted pursuant to the property settlement and divorce decree,[6] a problem arises because the
property settlement *911 took place eight months before LoBello filed and made even a colorable attempt at perfecting its
lien, see supra note 4. NRS 18.015(3) imposes a time requirement on attorneys seeking to perfect, adjudicate and enforce
a charging lien: "The lien attaches... from the time of service of the notices required by this section." Although we have
never expressly interpreted this section, Nevada's federal district court did so in Schlang v. Key Airlines, Inc., 158 F.R.D.
666 (D.Nev. 1994).

911

In Schlang, the parties settled a wrongful termination action and their appeals were dismissed. Id. at 667-68. Former
counsel filed a charging lien but failed to serve the notice required to perfect the lien until the settlement was consummated.

Id. at 669-70. The federal court, citing NRS 18.015(3),[7] found that because the attorney did not perfect his lien before the

settlement agreement was carried out, "there no longer existed any proceeds to which the lien could attach."[8] Id. at 670. It
therefore declined to adjudicate and enforce the lien.

We agree with Schlang, and hold that under NRS 18.015(3), the lien attaches to a judgment, verdict, or decree entered, or
to money or property recovered, after the notice is served. This interpretation harmonizes NRS 18.015(3)'s attachment
provisions with NRS 18.015(2)'s requirement that a lien be perfected by proper notice. See Tonopah Lumber Co. v. Nev.
Amusement Co., 30 Nev. 445, 455, 97 P. 636, 639 (1908) ("[A] lien can only legally exist when perfected in the manner
prescr bed by the statute creating it...." (internal quotation omitted)). Thus, if an attorney waits to perfect the lien until
judgment has been entered and the proceeds of the judgment have been distributed, the right to the charging lien may be
lost. See Sowder, 977 P.2d at 1038.

Basic notice and fairness requirements support this interpretation. Nevada attorneys must notify their clients in writing of
any interest the attorney has that is adverse to a client. RPC 1.8(a); In re Singer, 109 Nev. 1117, 1118, 865 P.2d 315, 315
(1993). Other courts have found that charging liens constitute adverse interests and applied a similar written notice rule.
See Fletcher v. Davis, 33 Cal.4th 61, 14 Cal.Rptr.3d 58, 90 P.3d 1216, 1221 (2004). NRS 18.015(3) promotes these policies
by requiring an attorney to serve notice and perfect a charging lien in a timely manner.

Diligent perfection of the lien under NRS 18.015(3) ensures that the client, the client's opponent in the litigation, and others
have notice of the attorney's lien and may conduct the litigation and deal with any recovery it produces accordingly. A timely
motion to adjudicate and enforce the charging lien under NRS 18.015(4) also enables the court to evaluate the lien while it
has jurisdiction over any affirmative recovery, while the attorney's performance is fresh in its mind, and before the judgment
is satisfied and the proceeds are distributed. See Weiland v. Weiland, 814 So.2d 1252, 1253 (Fla.Dist.Ct.App.2002) (holding
that notice was untimely where the attorney waited to establish the lien until approximately two months after the case
concluded); Sowder, 977 P.2d at 1038 (holding that a law firm waived its right to assert its charging lien when it waited
several months after the property was distr buted to assert its charging lien). See also Anderson v. Farmers Coop. Elevator
Ass'n, Inc., 874 F.Supp. 989, 992 (D.Neb.1995) (quashing the attorney charging lien because notice of the lien was
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untimely, made after the property had been transferred to the opposing party); Libner v. Maine Cnty. Comm'rs Ass'n, 845
A.2d 570, 573 (Me.2004) (holding that no lien may be imposed without direct and specific notice to the fund of an opposing
party or its carriers that a lien is asserted before the proceeds are disbursed). It would be unreasonable and unfair to clients
and to third parties to allow attorneys to claim a lien on any judgment at any time, no matter how much time has passed
since the case concluded.

*912 Here, LoBello perfected its lien eight months after the stipulated divorce decree was entered and the property was

distributed—well after the time a lien could have attached to any of the property governed by that settlement.[9] Moreover,
the custody settlement did not modify the property distribution in the divorce decree or otherwise bring that property back
into dispute. Most importantly, LoBello admits that all outstanding issues were resolved before it filed or tried to perfect the
lien, and it did not show that any recovery was still pending resolution or other legal action. Cf. Fein v. Schwartz, 404
S.W.2d 210, 227 (Mo.Ct.App.1966) (holding that where property remained to be transferred after the conclusion of a case,
the lien was timely perfected before the transfer of property even though notice was served after the conclusion of the

case). By the time LoBello filed and tried to perfect its lien, there was nothing to which the lien could have attached.[10]

912

This court is not unsympathetic to LoBello's situation. But when an attorney seeks a charging lien—a unique lien enforced
by unique methods—the attorney must comply with the particular requirements of the statute. Cf. Sowder, 977 P.2d at 1038.
If LoBello wishes to pursue its claims through other means, it may do so. However, LoBello may not rely on perfecting and
prosecuting a charging lien filed eight months after the final decree is entered, when the case was completely concluded.

Accordingly, we reverse.

We concur: HARDESTY and SAITTA, JJ.

[1] Leven hal also appeals the district court's denial of his later NRCP 60(b) motion to set aside the judgment. Since we conclude hat the
district court erred in adjudicating the lien, we do not reach the NRCP 60(b) issue.

[2] The 2013 Legislature amended NRS 18.015. 2013 Nev. Stat., ch. 79, § 1, at ___; S.B. 140, 77th Leg. (Nev. 2013). This appeal is
governed by the pre-amendment version of NRS 18.015. See NRS 18.015 (2012).

[3] At the outset of the representation, Leventhal signed LoBello's contract stating that if Leventhal failed to pay LoBello's fees, LoBello
would have a lien on all funds recovered through the case and all paperwork produced.

[4] Leven hal disputes the adequacy of LoBello's service of the notice of lien; also, it does not appear LoBello served Jacqueline, as the firm
should have under NRS 18.015(2). We do not reach these issues because they are not necessary to our decision.

[5] Argentena acknowledged that a charging lien is historically an in rem proceeding, which requires money or property over which the court
has jurisdiction in order to adjudicate a charging lien. To the extent that Argentena suggests that in rem jurisdiction gives rise to subject
matter jurisdiction, we clarify that they are distinct and both are required in order for a district court to adjudicate a charging lien. Other
courts without statutory authorization to adjudicate a charging lien in the client's litigation have nevertheless done so because the court has
the inherent power to supervise and regulate attorneys appearing before it, the court is likely already familiar with the relevant facts relating
to the attorney's performance and services in the case giving rise to the fee dispute, Restatement (Third) of the Law Governing Lawyers §
42 cmt. b (2000), and it would be a waste of judicial time and resources to require a separate proceeding to adjudicate the charging lien.
See Gee v. Crabtree, 192 Colo. 550, 560 P.2d 835, 836 (1977).

[6] Although this court has held that a charging lien may not attach to assets that are exempt from creditors under NRS 21.090, see Bero-
Wachs v. Law Office of Logar & Pulver, 123 Nev. 71, 75, 157 P.3d 704, 706 (2007), we have not addressed whether a division of property in
a divorce case is an affirmative recovery to which a lien may attach. In light of our disposition of this case, this question is not fairly
presented, and we decline to examine it on a hypothetical basis.

[7] The court quotes NRS 18.015(3) but incorrectly cites to NRS 18.015(2).

[8] The Schlang court cited In re Nicholson, 57 B.R. 672 (Bankr.D.Nev.1986) (discussing when an attorney lien attaches to property).

[9] Compare Kramer v. Kramer, 96 Nev. 759, 762, 616 P.2d 395, 397 (1980) (the court loses jurisdiction over property divided by a divorce
decree where the parties wait for longer than six mon hs to modify the decree), with Collins v. Murphy, 113 Nev. 1380, 1384-85, 951 P.2d
598, 600-01 (1997) (holding that it was unfairly prejudicial and an error to adjudicate a motion for attorney fees filed after the deadline for
filing a notice of appeal had passed), superseded by rule amendment. In the Matter of Amendments to the Nevada Rules of Civil
Procedure, ADKT No. 426 (Order Amending Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure 54, February 6, 2009).

[10] Even though LoBello's contract stated it would have a lien on any recovery if Leventhal failed to pay fees, at best this evidenced an
intent to claim a charging lien if Leventhal defaulted on payment and LoBello gained recovery on Leventhal's behalf. See Sowder, 977 P.2d
at 1038.
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